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The Crescent Bath House (The Chimes, as it is now called) is a two story 
eclectic structure of redwood. Built in the 1880's on the site of the 
first Artesian well where mineral water flowed at 132 degrees P. baths 
were taken for the healing power over rickets, arthritis, etc.. The 
structure was designed in the Moorish style so popular in the Victorian 
era and is graced by high pillered arches, full bannistered porches around 
the entire upper floor and across the front and back of the lower floor. 
An adequate amount of white gingerbread trim, light blue background and 
tinted glass windows gives the building an elaborate image.

When entering from the wide front porch through the stained glass double 
doors into the first floor of the Bathhouse lobby you see two large rooms 
with fireplaces, originally used for separate parlors for men and women. 
The entry way, office and one remaining staircase leading to the upper 
floor bedrooms is located between the parlors.

From the lower entry way are free swinging double doors leading to the 
85 foot long hall which is joined on one side by the 10 mineral bathrooms 
and on the other side by the courtyard garden, originally the enclosed 
mineral pool area. At the back of the building, connected to the front by 
the downstairs and upstairs halls is a large room used as a machine shop. 
This room connected to the garden area by French doors was originally used 
for steam baths and is opposite the area used for mud baths.

There are 10 ceramic tile bath tubs, all below floor level (Roman style) 
and are provided with steps to allow submersion in the health giving 
mineral water to whatever depth was desired. Plumbing provided mineral watc 
and in later years fresh water for the final rinse. The bathrooms, 
basically unchanged over the years, have skylights adjustable with ropes 
and pulleys to provide light and fresh air and all the bathrooms are con­ 
nected by small five foot eight inch doors. Behind the bathrooms are 
examination and therapy rooms used for massage, treatments, etc. that 
appear to have been added to the building in about the 1920's. Some of 
the original furniture has been acquired for display in those rooms. As 
was prevalent in that era only two toilets were located in the building, 
both on the lower level.

A park like atmosphere is established in the rear yard which has been 
planted with palms, pines, shrubs and many fruit trees as well as a lath 
screen structure which has the appearance of a carraige house. A wide 
blacktop parking area surrounds the building on two sides.

The upper floor bedrooms are much the same as original, however one end 
of the upstairs has been remodeled into an apartment and a full bath added*
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The Crescent Bath House located on Graham Avenue at Spring Street 
was built in 1887 and was designed by Frank Fe'rris in the Moorish 
style popular in the Victorian Era. In the Bathhouse venture, Ferris 
was the partner of Franklin Heald, one of Elsinore's three founders.

The bound register of 1888 and 1889, today in the family of Franklin 
Heald 1 s brother reads, "Crescent Bath House, Ferris and Heald, Props", 
Heald, a city founder, built the bathhouse the year before Elsinore 
became a city.

The bathhouse building has a proud heritage with reports of Indians 
bathing in a 114 degree "hot medicine" before the settlers moved 
West. The spring water was also used to cure sick animals of a 
variety of diseases.

After the discovery of Elsinore, Healds advertising made the city a 
prominent health resort and the bathhouse was purchased by a series 
of owners and was last used as a Spa in 1945, operating as a rooming 
house until the late Bonnie Gaugh named it "The Chimes" using it for 
interior decorating service and Victorian and Early American Antiques,

In subdividing Rancho La Laguna for colonizing, Heald and his co- 
founders, Donald Graham and William Collier had in late 1883 chosen 
the property surrounding the continuously flowing hot mineral water 
spring for the town site. The developers immediately advertised in 
Los Angeles, Pasadena, and Eastern newspapers that hot mineral water 
coming from the ground at 110 degrees was available.

Then came the Boom.

T. S. Van Dyke in Millionaires Of A Day says, "From 1870 to 1875 
Southern California was passing out of the control of the large land 
owners, nearly all of whom were raising cattle, horses and sheep to 

T the exclusion of everything else, and into the control of the general 
J farmer and fruit grower. In 1885 and 1886 the rumble of the coming 

: •" boom was heard."
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Under Shearing Of The Lambs, Van Dyke tells how the Easterner and his 
money were parted. In 1886, he says, Los Angeles was growing at the 
rate of 1000 people a month. "The impression is," he says, "that the 
California worked up the boom. Nothing could be farther from the truth."

During 1887, the boom was at its height. The collapse came in 1888.

In Elsinore, as everywhere else in Southern California, the boom had
turned a sane citizenry into crazy people. Its collapse awakened them
rudely from their dream. In 1888, Elsinore incorporated.

In 1889 and 1890, people were settling down to sane living once more.

The site of the Old Crescent Bath House probably has more history tied 
up with it than any other spot in Elsinore Valley. The early English 
(from 1873) and American (from 1883) settlers have told of using the 
hot spring for bathing and laundry work. On Monday mornings wagons 
drove there with tubs, washboards, benches and laundry. The women 
washed the clothes and hung them on bushes to dry. The men came for 
picnic lunches and would exchange news and conversation.

The elaborate bathhouse must have been quite a sight to travelers of 
the late 1980's when driving down the sparsely settled streets of 
Elsinore in their spring wagons or on horse back. The huge two story 
building of Moorish design with the highly decorated arches complete 
with splines, a large crescent beneath the upper story porch gable and 
the towering cupolo's (3) which topped the ridge crown. Add to this 
the color scheme of dark red, yellow and green for the main building 
and horozontal roof striping of the same color, must have been 
startling indeed.

The building is unique to Lake Elsinore history in that it is the only 
bathhouse still standing and still capable of offering medicinal 
services.


